
 

 

July 20, 2018 

TO: Members of the Board of Trustees  

of the Northern New Community Authority 

 

  Todd Hamula    Kay Hester 

  Mike Hite    Gary Hough 

David Miller    Diane Nutter 

  Tim Todaro     

 

FROM: Greg Daniels, Secretary 

SUBJECT: Organizational and Fiscal Meeting of the Board of Trustees on Thursday, July 26, 

2018, commencing at 3:30 p.m., at One South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 

43015 

The 2018 organizational and fiscal meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Northern New 

Community Authority will be held on Thursday, July 26, 2018, commencing at 3:30 p.m., at One 

South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015. 

In addition to the election of officers, the Board of Trustees will consider for adoption (i) 

a resolution budgeting and appropriating an amount from the Authority’s community development 

charge to pay administrative expenses of the Authority and amounts due under the Cooperative 

Agreement, (ii) a resolution levying the Authority’s community development charge, (iii) a 

resolution estimating the amount of active moneys to be awarded and designating a depository, 

and (iv) designation of a public records officer. 

Enclosed are a meeting agenda, minutes of the August 10, 2017, meeting, a financial 

report and copies of the resolutions referred to in that agenda.   



THE NORTHERN NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY   

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

ORGANIZATIONAL AND FISCAL MEETING AGENDA 

July 26, 2018 

1. Meeting called to order; roll call. 

2. Certificate of public notice submitted. 

3. Submission of the minutes of the August 10, 2017, meeting. 

a. Motion to approve minutes. 
b. Second to motion. 
c. Vote on motion. 

4. Reports and communications from officers of the Board. 

a. Treasurer’s Report. 

5.  Other reports and communications. 

a. Update on Development of NCA Areas. 

6. Election of Chairperson. 

a. Motion to Nominate. 
b. Second to Motion. 
c. Vote on Motion. 

7. Election of Vice Chairperson. 

a. Motion to Nominate. 
b. Second to Motion. 
c. Vote on Motion. 

8. Election of Secretary. 

a. Motion to Nominate. 
b. Second to Motion. 
c. Vote on Motion. 



2 

9. Election of Treasurer. 

a. Motion to Nominate. 
b. Second to Motion. 
c. Vote on Motion. 

10. Introduction of new resolutions or motions. 

a. Resolution No. 2018-1: “BUDGETING AND APPROPRIATING AN AMOUNT 
FROM THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CHARGE TO PAY 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES OF THE AUTHORITY AND AMOUNTS 
DUE UNDER THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT.” 

i. Motion to Approve. 
ii. Second to Motion. 
iii. Vote on Motion. 

b. Resolution No. 2018-2: “LEVYING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CHARGE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019.” 

i. Motion to Approve. 
ii. Second to Motion. 
iii. Vote on Motion. 

c. Resolution No. 2018-3: “RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE AMOUNT OF 
ACTIVE MONEYS OF THE NORTHERN NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY TO 
BE AWARDED FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 26, 2018, TO AND INCLUDING 
JULY 26, 2023, AND DESIGNATING ONE OR MORE DEPOSITORIES.” 

i. Motion to Approve. 
ii. Second to Motion. 
iii. Vote on Motion. 

d. Designation of a Public Records Officer 

i. Motion to Approve. 
ii. Second to Motion. 
iii. Vote on Motion. 

11. Other business. 

12. Next meeting. 

13. Adjournment. 

a. Motion to Adjourn. 
b. Second to Motion. 
c. Vote on Motion. 



THE NORTHERN NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY 

Minutes of the August 10, 2017 
Organizational and Fiscal Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

The Board of Trustees of the Northern New Community Authority (the “Board”) held an 
organizational and fiscal meeting commencing at 2:08 p.m. on Thursday, August 10, 2017, at 
Delaware City Hall, One South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, pursuant to notice of the 
meeting having been given by public posting and delivery to various newspapers published in the 
City of Delaware. 

(Copies of the items marked * are attached hereto and made a part of these minutes.) 

Ms. Nutter called the meeting to order and conducted a roll call.  The following Trustees 
were present for the roll call and the remainder of the meeting: 

Kay Hester (Citizen Member) 
Mike Hite (Local Government Representative) 
Gary Hough (Developer Member) 
David Miller (Citizen Member) 
Diane Nutter (Citizen Member) 
Tim Todaro (Developer Member) 

Also present were Tom Homan (City Manager), Dean Stelzer (City Director of Finance), 
Dave Efland (Planning and Community Development Director), Rob Alger (Treasurer of the Board) 
and Greg Daniels (Secretary of the Board). 

Mr. Daniels reported that notice of the meeting was provided to the Delaware Gazette and 
the Delaware News, and was posted at Delaware City Hall and the Delaware Area Chamber of 
Commerce.  Mr. Daniels filed the certificate of posting* in compliance with the Ohio open meeting 
laws. 

Ms. Nutter then advised the Board that the next order of business was the submission of the 
minutes of the August 29, 2016, Organizational and Fiscal Meeting to the Board for its approval.  
Mr. Hough moved to approve the minutes of the meeting as submitted and Mr. Miller seconded the 
motion.  The motion was approved as follows:  Ayes – Hester, Hite, Hough, Miller, Nutter and 
Todaro; Nays – None.  Ms. Nutter declared the minutes of the August 29, 2016, Organizational and 
Fiscal Meeting approved as submitted.   

Ms. Nutter then inquired whether there were any reports or communications from the 
officers of the Board. Mr. Stelzer provided a report on the financial statements.  Mr. Alger presented 
a financial report detailing the Community Development Charge receipts and current expenses of 
the City on behalf of the Authority*.  The Board and Mr. Stelzer discussed the report.  Mr. Homan 
discussed current and future improvement plans for Glenn Parkway.   



- 2 - 

Mr. Alger discussed the timing of the audit report prepared by the Auditor of State.  Mr. 
Miller moved, seconded by Ms. Hester, that the Authority’s financial records be audited biannually.  
The motion was approved as follows:  Ayes – Hester, Hite, Hough, Miller, Nutter and Todaro; 
Nays – None. 

Ms. Nutter then inquired as to whether there were any other reports or communications at 
this time.  Mr. Hough, Ms. Nutter and Mr. Efland discussed the status of the development. 

Ms. Nutter then advised the Board that the next order of business was to elect officers of 
the Board, commencing with the Chair of the Board.  Mr. Hough made a motion to nominate Ms. 
Nutter as Chair of the Board, and Mr. Miller seconded the nomination.  There being no further 
nominations, upon roll call vote, the motion was approved as follows: Ayes – Hester, Hite, 
Hough, Miller, Nutter and Todaro; Nays – None.  Ms. Nutter declared the motion passed and Ms. 
Nutter elected Chair of the Board.   

As the duly elected Chair, Ms. Nutter presided over the balance of the meeting. 

Ms. Nutter then requested nominations for Vice-Chair of the Board.  Ms. Nutter made a 
motion to nominate Mr. Hough, and Mr. Miller seconded the motion. There being no further 
nominations, upon roll call vote, the motion was approved as follows: Ayes – Hester, Hite, 
Hough, Miller, Nutter and Todaro; Nays – None.  Ms. Nutter declared the motion passed and Mr. 
Hough elected Vice-Chair of the Board.   

Ms. Nutter then requested nominations for Secretary of the Board of Trustees.  Mr. Miller 
made a motion to nominate Mr. Daniels to act as Secretary, and Mr. Hough seconded the motion. 
There being no further nominations, upon roll call vote, the motion was approved as follows: 
Ayes – Hester, Hite, Hough, Miller, Nutter and Todaro; Nays – None.  Ms. Nutter declared the 
motion passed and Mr. Daniels elected Secretary of the Board.   

Ms. Nutter then requested nominations for Treasurer of the Board.  Mr. Hough made a 
motion to nominate Mr. Alger to act as Treasurer, and Mr. Hite seconded the motion. There 
being no further nominations, upon roll call vote, the motion was approved as follows: Ayes – 
Hester, Hite, Hough, Miller, Nutter and Todaro; Nays – None.  Ms. Nutter declared the motion 
passed and Mr. Alger elected Treasurer of the Board.   

There was next presented to the Board Resolution No. 2017-1*, entitled “BUDGETING 
AND APPROPRIATING AN AMOUNT FROM THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CHARGE TO PAY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES OF THE AUTHORITY AND 
AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT.”  After brief discussion of 
the budget, Ms. Hester moved to approve the adoption of Resolution No. 2017-1.  Mr. Hough 
seconded the motion.  The motion was approved as follows:  Ayes – Hester, Hite, Hough, Miller, 
Nutter and Todaro; Nays – None.  Ms. Nutter declared the motion passed and Resolution 2017-1 
adopted. 



- 3 - 

There was next presented to the Board Resolution No. 2017-2*, entitled “LEVYING THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CHARGE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018.”  After a brief 
discussion, Mr. Hough moved for the adoption of Resolution No. 2017-2 and Mr. Hite seconded the 
motion.  The motion was approved as follows: Ayes – Hester, Hite, Hough, Miller, Nutter and 
Todaro; Nays – None.  Ms. Nutter declared the motion passed and Resolution 2017-2 adopted.   

Ms. Nutter then inquired as to whether there was any other business to come before the 
Board at this time and there was none.  There was discussion regarding the next meeting to be held 
next July or August.  There being no further business, a motion was made by Mr. Hough to adjourn 
the meeting and seconded by Ms. Nutter.  The motion was unanimously approved and the meeting 
adjourned at 3:05 pm. 

Secretary 
Northern New Community Authority 



It was moved by __________ and seconded by _________ that the following resolution be 
adopted: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-1 

BUDGETING AND APPROPRIATING AN AMOUNT FROM THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT CHARGE TO PAY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES OF THE 
AUTHORITY AND AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THE COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT. 

WHEREAS, the Northern New Community Authority (the “Authority”) has heretofore been 
duly created pursuant to the authority contained in Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code (the “NCA 
Act”), following the filing of a petition in the office of the Clerk of the Delaware City Council (the 
“Petition”) and the passage by the Delaware City Council of an ordinance approving the Petition and 
establishing the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, that certain Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions and Agreements for the 
Northern New Community Authority in the City of Delaware, Ohio relating to the creation of the 
Authority was executed by the Developer and recorded on October 22, 2007, as Instrument Number 
200700033807, and on December 12, 2013 as Instrument Number 201300043928 in the office of the 
Delaware County Recorder (collectively, as heretofore or hereafter supplemented or amended in 
accordance with its terms, the “Declaration”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the City have entered into a Cooperative Agreement (the 
“Cooperative Agreement”), pursuant to which the City agreed to construct the Community Facilities 
for the Authority in exchange for the Authority’s levying and collecting annually the Community 
Development Charge and reimbursing the City from that Community Development Charge for costs 
incurred by the City for the design, construction and financing of the Community Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority expects to levy, in accordance with the Declaration, a Community 
Development Charge for fiscal year 2019 at a rate of 7.5 mills on each Chargeable Parcel (as defined 
in the Declaration); and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Charge for each Chargeable Parcel is expected to 
be certified by and on behalf of the Authority to the Delaware County Auditor for collection as 
provided in Section 349.07 of the Ohio Revised Code; and 

WHEREAS, this Board needs to budget and appropriate money at this time in order to pay 
administrative and other expenses of the Authority for fiscal year 2019; and 

WHEREAS, this Board has determined that it is necessary and in the best interest of the 
Authority and the Board to procure insurance and bond coverage for the Board of Trustees of the 
Authority; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Northern New 
Community Authority that: 

Section 1.   There is hereby budgeted and appropriated for fiscal year 2019, from revenues of 
the Community Development Charge, $10,000.00 for the purpose of paying administrative expenses of 



- 2 - 

the Authority for fiscal year 2019 (including legal, accounting, audit, notices/postage, insurance/surety 
bonds and other administrative items). 

Section 2.   There is hereby budgeted and appropriated for fiscal year 2019, from revenues of 
the Community Development Charge, any amounts in excess of the amount stated in Section 1 for the 
purpose of making payments due under the Cooperative Agreement.   

Section 3.  It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Board, and that all 
deliberations of this Board that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the 
rules for notification of meetings to the public and news media for this Authority. 

Section 4.   This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

The foregoing motion having been put to vote, the result of the roll call was as follows: 

Todd Hamula Kay Hester 
Mike Hite Gary Hough               
David Miller Diane Nutter               
Tim Todaro 

The undersigned, Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the Northern New Community 
Authority, does hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution of that 
Authority, duly adopted July 26, 2018, and appearing upon the official records of that Board. 

Adopted: July 26, 2018 

Dated: July 26, 2018 

Attest:  
Secretary, Board of Trustees  
Northern New Community Authority 



It was moved by _________ and seconded by ___________ that the following resolution be 
adopted: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-2 

LEVYING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CHARGE FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2019. 

WHEREAS, the Northern New Community Authority (the “Authority”) has heretofore been 
duly created pursuant to the authority contained in Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code (the “NCA 
Act”), following the filing of a petition in the office of the Clerk of the Delaware City Council (the 
“Petition”) and the passage by the Delaware City Council of an ordinance approving the Petition and 
establishing the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, that certain Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions and Agreements for the 
Northern New Community Authority in the City of Delaware, Ohio relating to the creation of the 
Authority was executed by the Developer and recorded on October 22, 2007, as Instrument Number 
200700033807, and on December 12, 2013 as Instrument Number 201300043928 in the office of the 
Delaware County Recorder (collectively, as heretofore or hereafter supplemented or amended in 
accordance with its terms, the “Declaration”); and 

WHEREAS, consistent with the Petition, the Declaration establishes for the benefit and use of 
the Authority, as a charge on each then Chargeable Parcel (as defined in the Declaration), a maximum 
annual Community Development Charge of 7.5 mills to cover all or part of the cost of acquisition, 
development, construction, operation and maintenance of land, land development and Community 
Facilities (as that term is defined in the Declaration), the debt service thereof and all other costs incurred 
by the Authority in the exercise of its powers under the NCA Act; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the preparation of the Community Development Charge for 
certification for collection, this Board must make certain determinations as to the Assessed Valuation of 
certain Chargeable Parcels, all pursuant to and as permitted by the Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, notice of this Fiscal Meeting has been given in compliance with the Declaration 
and the law; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Northern New 
Community Authority that: 

Section 1.   The 2019 Community Development Charge (for collection in 2019) is hereby 
levied at a rate of 7.5 mills for each $1.00 of Assessed Valuation on the Chargeable Parcels as of 
August 1, 2018, (with the Community Development Charge for the Chargeable Parcel generally known 
as “Glennwood Commons” allocated among the various owners on the basis of square feet) and will not 
be waived, reduced or terminated. 

Section 2.  This Board hereby determines as follows for purposes of that 2019 Community 
Development Charge.  As permitted by and pursuant to Section 2.03(a) of the Declaration, for 
Chargeable Parcels identified to this Board for which a certificate of occupancy was issued by 
August 1, 2018, but for which the Assessed Valuation listed on the tax duplicate of the Auditor of 
Delaware County, Ohio, does not reflect the completed value of a structure on that Chargeable Parcel, 
“Assessed Valuation” shall include thirty-five percent (35%) of the cost of the residential or 
commercial structure stated on the building permit(s) on file with the City of Delaware. 



- 2 - 

Section 3.  The Community Development Charge for each Chargeable Parcel is payable directly 
to the Authority on or before September 1, 2018, or such other date determined by the Treasurer of this 
Board (the “Treasurer”), to the Treasurer at the Authority’s principal office.  Any Community 
Development Charge for any Chargeable Parcel, or any portion thereof, that is unpaid after that date will 
be certified by the Treasurer by and on behalf of the Authority to the Delaware County Auditor for 
collection as provided in Section 349.07 of the Revised Code and will bear penalty and interest as set 
forth in Section 5.04 of the Declaration if it is not paid, as provided by that Section 349.07, within the 
period provided for the collection of those Community Development Charges with real property taxes. 

Section 4.  If required by the Declaration or the Revised Code, the Treasurer or Secretary of this 
Board will cause notice of the adoption of this Resolution and the Community Development Charge to 
be published once in a newspaper of general circulation within the boundaries of the Authority’s new 
community district. 

Section 5.   This Board hereby determines that the collection of the Community Development 
Charge in the amounts and as otherwise provided in this Resolution is necessary to pay all or part of the 
cost of the acquisition, development, construction, operation and maintenance of land, land development 
and Community Facilities and other costs incurred and to be incurred by the Authority in the exercise of 
its powers under the NCA Act.  This Board hereby further determines that its actions in this Resolution 
are taken with reference to the fiscal requirements of the Authority for the period for which the 
Community Development Charge is to be collected pursuant to this Resolution as reflected in the budget 
of the Authority for that period. 

Section 6.   It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Board, and that all 
deliberations of this Board that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the 
rules for notification of meetings to the public and news media for this Authority. 

Section 7.   This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

The foregoing motion having been put to vote, the result of the roll call was as follows: 

Todd Hamula Kay Hester 
Mike Hite Gary Hough               
David Miller Diane Nutter               
Tim Todaro 

The undersigned, Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the Northern New Community Authority, 
does hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution of that Authority, duly 
adopted July 26, 2018, and appearing upon the official records of that Board. 

Adopted: July 26, 2018 

Dated: July 26, 2018 

Attest:  
Secretary, Board of Trustees  
Northern New Community Authority 



It was moved by   and seconded by  
that the following resolution be adopted: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-3 

RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE AMOUNT OF ACTIVE MONEYS OF 
THE NORTHERN NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY TO BE AWARDED 
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 26, 2018, TO AND INCLUDING JULY 26, 
2023, AND DESIGNATING ONE OR MORE DEPOSITORIES. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 135 of the Ohio Revised Code, which governs the deposit of all 
moneys subject to the control of this Board, requires that this Board provide for the designation of a 
depository of such moneys for periods of five (5) years; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary at this time to provide for the designation of a depository for 
the period from July 26, 2018, to and including July 26, 2023; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Northern New 
Community Authority that: 

Section 1.  The active moneys of the Authority shall be deposited in a bank or banks or a 
domestic building and loan association or associations during period from July 26, 2018, to and 
including July 26, 2023 (referred to herein as the period of designation), in accordance with and subject 
to the provisions of Chapter 135 of the Ohio Revised Code and this resolution. 

Section 2.  It is estimated that the probable amount of active deposits of public moneys to 
be deposited at the beginning of the period of designation will be $45,000 and that the probable 
maximum amount of active deposits of public moneys on deposit with any one depository at any time 
during such period of designation will be $100,000.00. 

Section 3.  No amount of public moneys subject to the control of this Board shall be 
awarded and placed on deposit as interim or inactive deposits during the period of designation. 

Section 4.  The application to serve as depository of the active deposits of this Board has 
been received from the financial institution referred to below, which is hereby determined to be an 
eligible institution for the deposit of such active moneys, is hereby found to be in conformity with law, 
including Chapter 135 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the following financial institution is hereby 
designated as public depository of the active moneys under the control of this Board for period of 
designation; provided, however, that such institution shall not be permitted to receive and have on 
deposit at any one time a greater amount of active deposits of moneys of this Board than the maximum 
amount, if any, specified in its application for the same.  On the basis of the operating needs of this 
Board the active deposits of public moneys subject to the control of this Board shall, in accordance with 
Section 135.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, be deposited in the office of First Commonwealth Bank, as 
further determined by the Treasurer. 

Section 5.  The award of public moneys herein made is subject to the provisions of Chapter 
135 of the Ohio Revised Code, including the limitation imposed by, and the variations permitted by, 
Sections 135.03 and 135.20 thereof, respectively; and, subject to the provisions of such Chapter, 



- 2 - 

deposits of moneys shall be made pursuant to this resolution from time to time in accordance with the 
financial requirements of this Board. 

Section 6.  The Treasurer is hereby directed to keep all applications to serve as depository 
on file in his office and with the Authority’s records custodian. 

Section 7.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized to forward certified copies of this resolution 
to each financial institution herein designated as public depository of this Board, and the Chair and 
Treasurer are hereby authorized and directed to execute on behalf of this Board such memorandum 
agreements relating to the designation of each institution as public depository and the securing of 
deposits therein as are required, authorized or permitted by law. 

Section 8.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to sign all instruments and to 
take any other actions as may be appropriate to open a bank account on behalf of this Authority with 
each financial institution herein designated as public depository of this Board, and the Treasurer is 
hereby further authorized and directed to make such arrangements to cause the deposit and withdraw 
of funds from such account from time to time in order to advance the purposes of the Authority, 
provided that any withdrawal must be approved by both the Chair and the Treasurer of the Authority. 

Section 9.  It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Board concerning and 
relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Board, and all 
deliberations of this Board that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the 
rules for notification of meetings to the public and news media for this Authority. 

Section 10.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

The foregoing motion having been put to vote, the result of the roll call was as follows: 

Todd Hamula Kay Hester 
Mike Hite Gary Hough               
David Miller Diane Nutter               
Tim Todaro 

The undersigned, Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the Northern New Community 
Authority, does hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution of the 
Northern New Community Authority, duly adopted July 26, 2018, and appearing upon the official 
records of that Board. 

Adopted: July 26, 2018 

Dated: July 26, 2018 

Attest:  
Secretary, Board of Trustees of the 
Northern New Community Authority 



NORTHERN NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY

________________ made the following motion: 

That this Board hereby designates Elaine McCloskey as public records officer for the 
Northern New Community Authority. 

_________________ seconded the motion. 

Following a vote, the motion was approved by a ________ vote. 

Date:  July 26, 2018 

_____________________, Secretary 
















	Memo
	Agenda
	Minutes August 10, 2017 Meeting
	Resolution No. 2018-1: Budget
	Resolution No. 2018-2: CDC
	Resolution No. 2018-3: Designating Depository
	Motion Designating Public Records Officer
	Financial Reports

